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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am sorry we are

          3  getting started a little late today, but, of course,

          4  simultaneous hearings at the same time that my

          5  hearing was scheduled, the hearing is going on

          6  across the street before the Transportation

          7  Committee over there, with Assemblyman Silver, about

          8  the Grand Street Subway Station, which also heavily

          9  impacts a good deal of the communities that we are

         10  talking about. So, I apologize. I left as soon as I

         11  got to testify.

         12                 Anyway, good morning. It is still

         13  morning, isn't it? Yes, another ten minutes. Anyway,

         14  I am Kathryn Freed, I am Chair of the Committee on

         15  Contracts, and I would like to start this meeting by

         16  recognizing my colleagues who are present here

         17  today. To my far left is Council Member Espada,

         18  Council Member Eva Moskowitz, Council Member

         19  Margarita Lopez, and as you probably noticed, there

         20  are several other hearings going on at the same time

         21  today, so colleagues and members of the Committee

         22  will be drifting in and out, but we do expect to

         23  vote on this today.

         24                 On November 21st of 2000, this

         25  Committee held a hearing on Intro. 693, which

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  required that the City of New York procure apparel

          3  and textile items from responsible contractors that

          4  provide quality service at the lowest responsible

          5  price, and also provide a safe work environment for

          6  their employees.

          7                 At that hearing the Council received

          8  enormous support for this landmarked legislation. As

          9  a result of the testimony and several

         10  recommendations we received, several amendments have

         11  been made to Intro. 693, and it is now referred to

         12  as Intro. 693-A. Specifically the legislation now

         13  provides a requirement for independent monitoring in

         14  order to determine whether contractors are in

         15  compliance with the requirements of the legislation.

         16                 The bill requires contractors to pay

         17  a non-poverty wage which is defined as an hourly

         18  wage and benefit level to raise a family of three

         19  out of poverty. A new standard by which to determine

         20  non-poverty wages for contractors who reside outside

         21  the United States is set by this bill that is

         22  referred to as the relative national standard of

         23  living index.

         24                 Reporting requirements by the

         25  Comptroller's Office in order to ensure that the
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          2  information provided by contractors is made

          3  available to the Mayor, the Council and the public,

          4  and a requirement that the law shall apply to

          5  contracts in excess of $2,500.

          6                 The need for this legislation is

          7  clear. The City sends tens of millions of dollars or

          8  more on apparel and textile goods annually, acting

          9  with the discretion allowed any private

         10  participation in the marketplace, the City should

         11  choose to allocate its purchasing dollars in order

         12  to enhance rather than degrade the economic and

         13  social well-being of people, while at the same time

         14  assure the public that the City is acquiring maximum

         15  quality of goods at the lowest possible price.

         16                 Furthermore, it is essential to the

         17  public interest that the City require manufacturers

         18  who contract to provide the City with apparel and

         19  textile goods to submit information necessary for

         20  the determination of responsibility.

         21                 Accordingly, the Council finds that

         22  it is in the best interest of the City to procure

         23  apparel and textile goods from responsible

         24  contractors and subcontractors, that provide a safe,

         25  non-discriminatory work environment and compensate
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          2  their employees with a non-poverty wage.

          3                 On numerous occasions this Committee

          4  has requested information from the Administration.

          5  Specifically, the Mayor's Office on Contracts,

          6  regarding whom the City does business with in

          7  relation to apparel and textile contracts.

          8                 To date, despite several

          9  representations by the Mayor's Office of Contracts

         10  that the Information would be forthcoming, this

         11  Committee has received no response.

         12                 This failure to provide the Council

         13  with this information signifies that the

         14  Administration simply does not know with whom it is

         15  doing business, thereby necessitating the adoption

         16  of this important legislation.

         17                 Of course, it may just be it doesn't

         18  know and doesn't care.

         19                 Before we hear testimony, let me

         20  remind you that it is the practice of the Committee

         21  to swear in all witnesses. And, again, I want to

         22  emphasize the fact that this is the first

         23  legislation of its kind in the country. We would

         24  hope that it sets a precedent, not only for the City

         25  but sends a message to other municipalities and
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          2  other states so that they will follow our example,

          3  so I am particularly thrilled that we are going to

          4  be going forward with this today, and I do want to

          5  thank the unions of the City, especially UNITE and

          6  Central Labor Council.

          7                 So, one of the things that is unique

          8  about this bill that has really never been done is

          9  this question of how we will set a relative national

         10  standard of living indexes, so the first witness I

         11  am going to call today is Robert E. Scott from

         12  Economic Policy Institute, and Steve Weingarten who

         13  is here from UNITE. So, if you two gentlemen will

         14  come up. And if you have statements, please hand

         15  them to the Sergeant-At-Arms so they can be handed

         16  out.

         17                 Again, as I said, I always swear the

         18  witnesses in in this Committee, so if you would

         19  raise your right hands.

         20                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. SCOTT: Yes.

         23                 MR. WEINGARTEN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great.

         25                 Before you testify, just state your
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          2  name and your position and please proceed. And the

          3  light must be off for the mike to be on.

          4                 MR. SCOTT: Good morning, Madam Chair,

          5  and members of the Committee. Thank you for allowing

          6  met to testify today. My name is Robert E. Scott,

          7  and I am a senior international economist with the

          8  Economic Policy Institute in Washington, D.C. I am

          9  here today to discuss the methodology that will be

         10  used to determine international living wages for

         11  apparel workers producing goods for consumption in

         12  New York City under the terms of this bill.

         13                 I would like to briefly begin by

         14  setting the context of this discussion.

         15                 The bill takes place in the context

         16  of a world that is undergoing rapid corporate-driven

         17  expansion of trade and capital flows. This has

         18  changed the nature of labor markets, the nature both

         19  here and abroad, as well.

         20                 Trade in apparel is always a part of

         21  a broader package of reforms that are included in

         22  trade agreements, such as NAFTA and the WTO

         23  agreement.

         24                 We can't just look at the way trade,

         25  and changes in trade barriers affect apparel alone,
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          2  we have to look at the whole impact of this broad

          3  policy of implementing free trade areas, and one of

          4  the main themes of those areas is they are both free

          5  trade and free investment agreements, and I think

          6  that is an important component to note when we think

          7  about how they impact workers both in developing

          8  countries and also here in the United States.

          9                 The NAFTA agreement with Mexico is

         10  particularly relevant, I want to spend, if I may,

         11  just a minute or so talking about how they affected

         12  workers in both countries.

         13                 The NAFTA agreement basically brought

         14  down tariff barriers into Mexico, especially, for

         15  all kinds of goods, including, and also US barriers

         16  on apparel imports into the United States.

         17                 What happened was that Mexico, to

         18  make it short, was flooded with corn from the United

         19  States. This depressed corn prices in Mexico, forced

         20  subsistence farmers off of the land and into the

         21  City, and what we have seen happen in Mexico is that

         22  since NAFTA was implemented six years ago, seven

         23  now, we have seen about a 25 percent drop in real

         24  wages for workers in Mexico. This agreement has

         25  failed to deliver the rising standards of living
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          2  that were promised for workers there, and I think

          3  this bill in general is an appropriate type of

          4  response to that kind of negative pressure on the

          5  distribution of income.

          6                 For example, in Mexico about 30

          7  percent of all of the income generated goes to

          8  workers in the form of wages, the rest is profits

          9  and interest payments that go to those at the

         10  highest income levels.

         11                 In the US, on the other hand, about

         12  70 percent of income goes to workers in the form of

         13  wages. So, it is a very unequal society, and huge

         14  numbers of billionaires created in Mexico over the

         15  last seven years, and this is all about increasing

         16  the inequality of income distribution, not bringing

         17  up wages.

         18                 Now, this bill is not about bringing

         19  up wages in Mexico or other developing countries to

         20  US levels. It has nothing to do with anything like

         21  that. Instead, it will help workers in other

         22  countries achieve a fair living wage and a better

         23  distribution of their own national income, that is

         24  increase workers' share of the pie.

         25                 I would like to make a few brief
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          2  comments now on the methodology, which starts with

          3  the basic living wage of about $7.50 an hour. This

          4  wage is adjusted downwards for differences in the

          5  relative standard of living in each country. It is

          6  really an incontrovertible economic law that wages

          7  depend in part on the average level of productivity

          8  in each country, not in comparison with the United

          9  States.

         10                 The methodology ensures the countries

         11  will not be enforced to raise wages faster than they

         12  should.

         13                 Point two, the methodology is

         14  conservative. Take a particular example with respect

         15  to Mexico that I am aware of. There are about 38,000

         16  uniformed manufacturers in Mexico, 38,000 workers in

         17  the uniformed manufacturing industry, and they earn

         18  on average about 85 cents an hour, plus some

         19  benefits.

         20                 Now, let's compare that with the

         21  poverty level standards of income. My institute has

         22  just helped publish a book in Mexico called the

         23  State Of Working Mexico, by six well-known respected

         24  academics in that country. In that they did original

         25  work defining what poverty level wage is. And to cut
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          2  to the chase, they said two levels, one for what

          3  they call the subsistence, subminimal basket, mostly

          4  of food, and to buy that basket a worker needs to

          5  earn at least $1.23 an hour. In other words, about

          6  40 cents above the actual wages in the uniform

          7  industry.

          8                 Again, Mexican defined standard

          9  basket essential needs, which I would define as a

         10  poverty level wage, is much higher, it costs about

         11  $3.16 an hour.

         12                 Now, it is important to note that 78

         13  percent of all workers in Mexico today earn less

         14  than the poverty level wage, as a result of the kind

         15  of inequality that I discussed earlier, and the

         16  forces particularly related to trade agreements.

         17                 The third point I would like to make

         18  is that an international living wage will not lead

         19  to job losses in countries like Mexico, nor will it

         20  lead to job gains in the United States.

         21                 There are many opponents to this kind

         22  of measure who have claimed, based on simple

         23  economic models, that minimum wages will force

         24  companies to lay off workers, but that simply isn't

         25  supported when you look at the evidence of what
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          2  actually has happened. And, again, my institute has

          3  done much work on this issue, of what happens when

          4  you raise effectively a minimum wage. And it is in a

          5  sense what we are doing here, or what you will be

          6  doing with the living wage proposal.

          7                 We have found that there is little

          8  evidence of any significant job loss when the

          9  minimum wage has been increased in our studies, and

         10  we have looked at the claim that the minimum wage

         11  will have negative impact on workers, and what we

         12  found is, and this is reviewing the literature to

         13  quote, the claim has been carefully studied by labor

         14  economists, who have found little evidence that

         15  minimum wage increases lead to significant job

         16  losses. In fact, the research unequivocally shows

         17  that the benefits to low wage workers and their

         18  families far outweigh the cost, what is the benefit

         19  to the higher standards of living. So, when we do

         20  the calculus, we find that the benefits greatly

         21  exceed the costs.

         22                 Fourth, this bill should not

         23  significantly increase the cost of uniforms to New

         24  York City. My own research with Thea Lee (phonetic)

         25  with my former colleagues at EPI, showed that up to
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          2  90 percent, more than 90 percent of the change in

          3  imported apparel prices was absorbed by domestic

          4  apparel distributors.

          5                 Now, that sounds confusing, but we

          6  can remember in the last 20 or 30 years apparel

          7  prices in real terms have been declining. So,

          8  distributors and retailers have not been passing

          9  along those savings to consumers, 90 percent of them

         10  have gone to raise the profits of retailers. And,

         11  so, it is unlikely if prices go up that they are

         12  going to shift their prices very much.

         13                 Furthermore, production labor makes

         14  up only a tiny fraction of the production costs of

         15  clothing made abroad.

         16                 For example, one case study in a

         17  recent journal article estimated that production

         18  wages make up about 11 percent of the local cost of

         19  making a men's casual shirt. The total local cost

         20  was about $5 for that shirt which retails close to

         21  $35. So, again, there is a huge margin which can be

         22  absorbed, in which to absorb these small increases

         23  in wages.

         24                 So, to conclude, in my view the

         25  relative standard of living methodology included in
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          2  this bill is eminently defensible.

          3                 Number two, this methodology is

          4  flexible, it is transparent, it is practical, and I

          5  think, as I said earlier, it is defensible.

          6                 Now, this bill, in particular, is not

          7  protectionist, nor is it a barrier to trade, it will

          8  simply allow New York City to act as a morally

          9  guided buyer of clothing.

         10                 Finally, if implementing, this bill

         11  will help improve the distribution of wages and

         12  incomes for apparel workers in the desperately poor

         13  countries that now sell uniforms to this City.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. One

         16  thing I would ask is, can you submit a copy of your

         17  testimony in writing to us?

         18                 MR. SCOTT: It is at this point in

         19  bullet form, but I will soon.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, you can do it

         21  at a later date, but we would like to get a copy of

         22  it.

         23                 MR. SCOTT: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. I want to

         25  add that we have been joined by two other
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          2  colleagues, Council Member Gifford Miller and

          3  Council Member Christine Quinn.

          4                 Mr. Miller, you have a question?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I just wanted

          6  to make a quick comment and then ask a question.

          7                 First of all, I just wanted to

          8  commend you, Madam Chair, and the Speaker and the

          9  other members of the Council who are sponsors of

         10  this bill, because to me this is a very important

         11  statement the Council is making here about freedom

         12  really, actually. The opponents of this bill and

         13  other legislation like this, and efforts not just on

         14  the part of governments but of private entities and

         15  private individuals, they argue that we have to have

         16  free markets, because free markets will create all

         17  this benefit. And, you know, I think lots of

         18  different people have different views on that, but

         19  it seems to me that those opponents then lose all of

         20  their interest in freedom when it comes to the

         21  freedom of consumers to make choices about what they

         22  want their dollars to go towards. And what we are

         23  saying here is, we believe in the freedom of the

         24  City of New York to decide what kinds of products it

         25  wants to purchase and what sorts of companies and
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          2  what sorts of people we are prepared to support with

          3  our dollars and with our tax dollars and with the

          4  dollars of our constituents. Because that is the

          5  freedom that nobody on the opponents want to talk

          6  about. Everyone wants to say, oh, we have free trade

          7  but we are going to force you to buy the lowest cost

          8  product, where is the freedom there? Why shouldn't

          9  it be that the City of New York should say we don't

         10  want to purchase a product that has been created

         11  through the exploitation of workers. We don't want

         12  to purchase products that participate in the

         13  destruction of people's lives. We want to purchase

         14  products that will life not only ourselves up but

         15  people around the world. That is our freedom. That

         16  is our right. No one should be able to take away our

         17  right to make those sorts of choices.

         18                 So, I guess the question that I have

         19  to you is with regard to the City's ability to make

         20  these types of choices and other entities, you know,

         21  do you think that there are ways within the trade

         22  agreements that the United States has and what can

         23  we do and what are other people doing to try to

         24  validate that freedom, that freedom of choice and

         25  that freedom of consumers to reject policies which
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          2  are destroying people's lives and countries'

          3  well-beings?

          4                 MR. SCOTT: Well, I guess there are

          5  two responses I would make to that question.

          6                 First of all, this ordinance is in

          7  many ways similar to the local living wage

          8  ordinances that have been implemented in many cities

          9  around this country and those have worked well. They

         10  have not discriminated against workers, they have

         11  not led to massive unemployment.

         12                 Now, I am not a trade lawyer, and I

         13  don't want to answer the legal questions, but in my

         14  layman's opinion, this kind of an ordinance, if it

         15  applies to all countries, is likely to pass that

         16  kind of GAT (phonetic) or a WTO kind of a challenge,

         17  and, again, I am not an expert in GAT law so I can't

         18  promise that. I think as long as it is applied

         19  equally to all countries that it maintains the

         20  policy of what is known as national treatment, and I

         21  think that will be acceptable, since the City

         22  already has a minimum wage, you know, it imposes on

         23  its own workers.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you. And

         25  thank you, Madam Chair, and let me again complement
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          2  you for your leadership on this issue. I wish I was

          3  a member of this Committee so I can vote on it

          4  today. I was previously and in the wisdom of

          5  somebody was put on a different committee, but I

          6  look forward to voting for this and voting for any

          7  override that is necessary.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         10                 Unfortunately, it looks like the

         11  override will be necessary.

         12                 Any other questions or comments?

         13                 Council Member Moskowitz.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         15  Thank you, Madam Chair, for convening this hearing,

         16  and I just had a question about the potential

         17  protection aspects of the bill. Unfortunately, this

         18  is a bill that I am seeing for the first time so I

         19  am not as well versed in some of the new details as

         20  I would like to be. Obviously I have a great deal of

         21  concern about sweatshops generally, particularly

         22  right here in New York, since they are sort of under

         23  our noses and we somehow every year fail to enforce

         24  our own minimum wage standards. But I do have

         25  concerns that a bill like this will have results for
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          2  particularly people in third world countries and it

          3  is obviously a balancing act between making sure

          4  that workers are not exploited and yet not taking

          5  away their means of earning a living. And you raise

          6  the issue that, well, those claims are not well

          7  founded, but it seems as if that requires you to

          8  look into your crystal ball and say what the future

          9  holds. You are saying that this is not going to lead

         10  to job losses in other countries and it is not going

         11  to lead to job gains here. It is not clear to me on

         12  what basis you are saying that, and it flies a

         13  little bit in the face of, I am not an economist,

         14  but sort of it is a zero sum game, so where are they

         15  coming from?

         16                 MR. SCOTT: Well, this is a question

         17  of standards regarding how goods are produced. We

         18  know from studies that have been done by Professor

         19  Cart at Berkely and then later Cart and Krueger,

         20  Krueger is from Princeton. They had surveyed the

         21  actual impact of living wage ordinances within the

         22  United States and it particularly looked in the

         23  ordinance that was passed I believe in New Jersey in

         24  the early 1990s, and they looked at this impact on

         25  employment in fastfood establishments, which is one
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          2  of the most important purchasers of low-cost labor,

          3  and minimum wage labor. And what they found, they

          4  compared New Jersey with the adjacent restaurants, I

          5  think it was in Pennsylvania, that didn't change

          6  their minimum wage, and they found there was no

          7  statistically significant change in the employment

          8  levels or the growth of employment across these two

          9  states, and in fact, they found employment actually

         10  grew faster in New Jersey where wages were

         11  increased, and I think we have an explanation for

         12  that, it's not a simple story. I can explain it, if

         13  you like.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Just let me

         15  understand. I mean, the theory, I assume, is that

         16  this law puts pressure on contractors operating in

         17  third world countries to raise their wages rather

         18  than pull their jobs out, right? That's the theory.

         19  But I guess I don't really understand why that would

         20  work. Why wouldn't they -- you know, I guess I don't

         21  see these companies as you presumably don't, as

         22  caring where they make the stuff, so can you

         23  explain?

         24                 MR. SCOTT: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I must be
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          2  missing something. I don't really understand how

          3  that works.

          4                 MR. SCOTT: Well, if we were to apply

          5  a minimum wage, say, for example, to Mexico only, a

          6  living wage standard, then I think companies might

          7  be tempted to move production to Honduras or

          8  Guatemala. But if we apply a living wage standard to

          9  each country relative to its own standard of living,

         10  then I think you are going to see wage increases in

         11  all apparel producers that are proportionate to the

         12  increase in their costs.

         13                 So, I think there would be no

         14  incentive to move from one country to another. So,

         15  that is I think why this works. It is a global

         16  proposal, it is not singling out just one country.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: If I may,

         18  just one final quick question.

         19                 In the Fiscal Impact Statement we got

         20  the price of this bill is estimated at about 2

         21  million; where does that come from? How does that

         22  work?

         23                 MR. SCOTT: I haven't seen those

         24  estimates, I would be happy to look at them. But I,

         25  frankly, would have a lot of questions about the
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          2  assumptions behind those numbers, because as I

          3  mentioned, apparel producers are quite competitive.

          4  Most of the cost is in distribution and design here

          5  in the United States, not in production in places

          6  like Mexico or the Caribbean.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So you

          8  don't think it is going to cost the City --

          9                 MR. SCOTT: I don't think it will cost

         10  much, if anything, to implement this bill.

         11                 I think the competition between

         12  producers in those countries will keep costs down.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. I just

         15  have to say a personal observation. I am really

         16  proud of this bill, and one of the reasons is I

         17  believe that, you know, worker exploitation, no

         18  matter where it happens, is indefensible, and I

         19  don't think that this bill will in any way, shape or

         20  form cost jobs outside of the country. What it will

         21  do is help to improve the standard of labor for

         22  everyone. And I think it is really important that

         23  the City, and that we as representatives of this

         24  City, take a moral position that we will not in any

         25  way condone the exploitation of workers, whether
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          2  they be here or any other country.

          3                 Council Member Lopez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes, sir, when

          5  we talk about a standard in production, can you

          6  clarify that concept, please?

          7                 MR. SCOTT: I am sorry, I don't

          8  understand your question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What I am

         10  trying to acquire is clarity here due to the

         11  questions that were posed to you before by my

         12  colleague Moskowitz.

         13                 MR. SCOTT: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I need some

         15  clarity here in regard of, number one, when we have

         16  the production of a product, based on exploitations

         17  of workers, anywhere in the planet, what we are

         18  talking about here is that in the United States of

         19  America it is not only exploitation, it is not only

         20  violation of the law that we have, it is also not

         21  asking for the standard that should be applied, not

         22  only in our country, but a standard that should be

         23  applied in the entire planet.

         24                 Then I am asking you to clarify what

         25  is what we are talking about here, and that the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  question of the standards doesn't equate to the loss

          3  of jobs or the gaining of jobs by anybody, no matter

          4  where they are, because standards by this

          5  corporation shouldn't exist anywhere in this planet

          6  anywhere in this planet because exploitation is

          7  against humanity.

          8                 MR. SCOTT: I certainly agree with

          9  your sentiments. The economics profession goes too

         10  far in separating values from efficiency, but in

         11  this case, in terms of the methodology, according to

         12  my reading of the bill, is it will require each

         13  country, apparel workers in each country that

         14  provide uniforms to the City to pay a living wage

         15  that is comparable to living wages in the US, that's

         16  the only standard that we have available today we

         17  can set for a poverty level wage. That's adjusted

         18  for differences in the cost of living in different

         19  countries and the levels of income in those

         20  countries.

         21                 So, for example, I think that my

         22  estimate suggests that the living wage in the US is

         23  $7.50 an hour, that is what has been proposed here.

         24  In Mexico, I think the methodology that has been

         25  proposed would lead to a living wage that is
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          2  somewhat in the range of about $2 an hour. They are

          3  paying uniformed producers 85 cents an hour now,

          4  they are going to get them about $2. I think that is

          5  conservative, by the way.

          6                 When I talked earlier, the sub-basic

          7  survival basket of food cost $1.23 an hour, basic

          8  needs costs about $3.15. So, this standard will at

          9  least allow people to survive.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then what we

         11  are talking about, sir, is that in this country we

         12  have laws, the law said that workers had to be paid

         13  at least $5 -- what is the minimum wage?

         14                 MR. SCOTT: I believe it is now $5.50

         15  an hour.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is the

         17  amount of money that had to be paid, and right now

         18  our uniformed personnel is wearing uniforms that

         19  have been produced on violation of the laws of this

         20  City and this State and this nation, correct?

         21                 MR. SCOTT: Yes, that's correct. We

         22  certainly have sweatshops here making them, and it

         23  is certainly against the law.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Therefore, we

         25  need to fix what has been violated, correct?
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          2                 MR. SCOTT: That's right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, Council

          5  Member Quinn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And this will be

          8  the last series of questions we have.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I was just

         10  reviewing the Mayor's reasons for opposition to the

         11  sweatshop bill. Shockingly he didn't send me these

         12  earlier, we are just not talking as much as we used

         13  to, but in it the Mayor, and I believe incorrectly

         14  says, so I want to just ask you as the expert

         15  whether my belief that this is incorrect is correct,

         16  let me read you one thing. The bill would force the

         17  City and its apparel contractors to ensure that

         18  every employee involved in any stage of the apparel

         19  manufacturing process, from a worker picking cotton

         20  to a worker making thread, is paid to a wage and

         21  health benefit level of at least $8.75 an hour (well

         22  above the federal minimum wage.)

         23                 The next paragraph he says, or

         24  whoever wrote this said, the bill would force the

         25  City to sanction a contractor not only when it fails
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          2  to meet the bill's wage and benefit requirements,

          3  but also when any of the contractors, subcontractors

          4  or suppliers violate the bill's $8.74 hour wage and

          5  benefit mandate.

          6                 As I understand the bill, and what

          7  you are saying, that this $8.75 number is completely

          8  erroneous because the wage is going to be determined

          9  with this fairly complex economic scale determinator

         10  which in fact the Mayor's people at the first

         11  hearing had extensive comments about what type of

         12  methodology, what type of economics, et cetera, et

         13  cetera, they wanted used.

         14                 MR. SCOTT: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, am I

         16  correct to assert $8.75 is not right because we are

         17  going to do it differently?

         18                 MR. SCOTT: Yes. I have done some

         19  estimates myself and no country would pay a living

         20  wage equal in dollars to what is paid here in the

         21  United States.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And even to

         23  state that there would be one uniform amount that

         24  this contract would require is incorrect.

         25                 MR. SCOTT: I am sorry, the more what?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I said isn't it

          3  true for the Mayor to state that this contract would

          4  set one uniformed dollar amount in every country in

          5  the world is incorrect.

          6                 MR. SCOTT: That is incorrect. It

          7  would set a different level for every country based

          8  on its own living standards.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. And

         10  I just want to say for the record, as I said before,

         11  the I think the Mayor position to this bill is

         12  outrageous and, quite frankly, immoral, but I think

         13  it shows tremendous disrespect to the City Council

         14  and to the people of this City that their opposition

         15  MO would be filled with information that is not

         16  true, quite frankly are lies, but are such bad lies

         17  that anybody who had even barely read the bill would

         18  know. So, it is disrespectful and I believe has an

         19  implication that we are just not that smart, and

         20  that's wrong. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right.

         22  Gentlemen, thank you very much. We are going to go

         23  on to the next panel. The next panel will be

         24  Assemblyman Brian McLaughlin, who is the head of the

         25  Central Labor Council, Pat Bahnken, the President of
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          2  EMS, and Bob Unger, also from the New York Central

          3  Labor Council, AFL-CIO -- what is this? Local 2507.

          4  Bob, I just gave you a promotion.

          5                 And I guess before you start I also

          6  want to congratulate Pat Bahnken and the votes

          7  yesterday. I am very glad, I am glad to see that you

          8  are being treated and thanked in the fashion you

          9  should be.

         10                 MR. BAHNKEN: Thank you very much, we

         11  are grateful to all of the Council.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. And if

         13  you gentlemen could raise your right hands, do you

         14  swear to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing

         15  but the truth?

         16                 MR. BAHNKEN: I do.

         17                 MR. UNGAR: I do.

         18                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: Yes, I do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         20  And as you testify, just state your name and

         21  position, and please proceed.

         22                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: Thank you, Madam

         23  Chair, and distinguished members of the Committee.

         24  My name is Brian McLaughlin, I am the President of

         25  the New York City Central Labor Council. I come here
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          2  today on behalf of the 1.5 million union members

          3  affiliated with the New York City Central Labor

          4  Council, AFL-CIO, and I want to begin by expressing

          5  my support for this bill certainly, and my thanks to

          6  Speaker Vallone, to Council Member Freed and to the

          7  other supporters of this legislation.

          8                 The labor movement here in New York

          9  and across the country is leading a broad range of

         10  concerned groups to make this message clear. We will

         11  not tolerate sweatshop abuses in the United States,

         12  or any other country. By passing the anti-sweatshop

         13  procurement bill, New York can only take a strong

         14  stand against sweatshop labor, but also to achieve

         15  real positive results by leveling the playing field

         16  to aid responsible companies.

         17                 The labor movement in New York City

         18  has a long tradition of advocating for the rights of

         19  the most vulnerable workers, including apparel

         20  workers. In the early part of this century unions

         21  led the public outcry for improved conditions in

         22  hundreds of sweatshops in lower Manhattan.

         23  Successful efforts to pass protective legislation

         24  were extremely important to the fight against

         25  sweatshops.
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          2                 With the support of unions and other

          3  groups, elected officials pushed for laws banning

          4  child labor, regulating wages and hours and

          5  mandating standards for workplace safety.

          6                 Speaker Vallone and other Council

          7  members who are backing Intro. 693-A are following

          8  in its tradition of legislating against sweatshops

          9  and for workers' rights.

         10                 This leadership is needed now because

         11  sweatshops have returned with a vengeance. It is not

         12  just sweatshops in New York or the United States

         13  that are a major concern, but sweatshops all over

         14  the world where workers are exploited and

         15  mistreated.

         16                 Apparel manufacturers that are still

         17  obeying those regulatory laws and paying their

         18  workers decently, and there are many of them, have

         19  trouble competing with the other companies that are

         20  not playing fair. That is why when it comes to New

         21  York City apparel purchasing, we need new rules that

         22  reward the responsible companies, instead of making

         23  it easy for the irresponsible companies to thrive at

         24  their competitors expense.

         25                 A recent report by the Ways and Means
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          2  Committee of the New York State Assembly measured

          3  the manufacturing sector of our economy.

          4                 The report indicates that

          5  manufacturing jobs have declined from 892,000 in

          6  1999 to 882,000 in 2000, and 866,000 in the State of

          7  New York in 2001. While many factors contributed to

          8  this decline, such as enormous energy costs that

          9  impact on this sector of our economy, lack of strong

         10  procurement policy, and the unlevel playing field

         11  that exists for New York apparel manufacturers

         12  bidding on work in the City of New York, cannot be

         13  ignored any longer.

         14                 We have put our heads in the sand and

         15  taken a position that nothing can be done to stem

         16  the tide in regard to the job loss, and its

         17  devastating impact on the economy in our City. And

         18  the economic opportunities that apparel

         19  manufacturing has provided for generations of new

         20  immigrants and minorities in the City of New York is

         21  seeking a better way of life for themselves and

         22  their families.

         23                 This bill will go a long way toward

         24  changing those realities. However, there is more

         25  that needs to be done. I am here in support of this
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          2  legislation, I call on Speaker Vallone and the

          3  members of the City Council to look at forming a

          4  committee that will investigate the use of prison

          5  labor in the State of New York, and how it

          6  undermines the employment opportunities for other

          7  workers in our City.

          8                 Yesterday's New York Times reported

          9  that a manufacturer of binder clips used forced

         10  prison labor in China to assemble their products.

         11  This company looked to make a profit by abusing

         12  workers and human rights and in the process

         13  undermined responsible companies from participating

         14  competitively in the marketplace.

         15                 We need to investigate similar

         16  situations in our City and in our State, to ensure

         17  that products we buy are not made under such

         18  conditions.

         19                 Prisoners can acquire skills while

         20  incarcerated without producing goods that undermine

         21  legitimate industry and employment opportunities for

         22  immigrants and minorities in our City.

         23                 Additionally, we should review our

         24  VENDEX practices to be certain that tax dollars are

         25  not used to purchase any goods for the City or
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          2  municipal agencies that are produced by firms that

          3  abuse labor.

          4                 I am here today along with other New

          5  York City labor leaders, Patrick Bahnken is with me

          6  and Mr. Ungar, Edgar Romney and the leaders of

          7  UNITE, to say that we need to pass the

          8  anti-sweatshop procurement bill. The City should not

          9  purchase uniforms from companies that use

         10  sweatshops, and the union members who work for the

         11  City and wear uniforms on the job should not have to

         12  be put in clothing that compromises the support for

         13  workers' rights here in our City, in our country, or

         14  across the globe.

         15                 We have embarked on a renewed effort

         16  to end sweatshop conditions in the apparel industry,

         17  and the passage of this legislation will market an

         18  important victory in that effort. I look forward to

         19  expanding our efforts in the interest of leveling

         20  the playing field in the manufacturing sector of

         21  today's economy, a vital link to the future

         22  well-being of New York City.

         23                 And in closing, not part of my

         24  testimony, but just thinking of the fiscal impact,

         25  being a lay person in this area, certainly having
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          2  some knowledge, perhaps more than the average person

          3  in the manufacturing sector of our economy and it's

          4  impact on the economy, we see the decline in

          5  manufacturing that has taken place for many, many,

          6  many years now, and I think what we are talking

          7  about is recognizing it's difficult to stem the

          8  tide, but there are many things we can do to level

          9  the playing field and allow legitimate employers to

         10  stay competitive in our marketplace and that alone

         11  is a fiscal reward for the City of New York. While

         12  there may be a fiscal impact on the City in this

         13  procurement process, not doing these, taking these

         14  steps, and not taking the initiative will cost the

         15  City millions of dollars more by ignoring the

         16  process that is taking place in the manufacturing of

         17  these goods across the globe.

         18                 I thank you, Kathryn Freed, for your

         19  leadership. I thank the members of the City Council

         20  who have worked with you on this legislation, and I

         21  thank you for the opportunity to address the other

         22  members of your Committee that are here today, and

         23  if there are any questions after Mr. Bahnken gets

         24  through, I guess we would answer them collectively.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. And thank
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          2  you very much for your testimony.

          3                 It works if the mike is on the light

          4  is off.

          5                 MR. BAHNKEN: Got it.

          6                 My name is Patrick Bahnken, and I

          7  represent the EMTs and paramedics of the New York

          8  City Fire Department. I am also a Vice President of

          9  District Council 37, representing over 125,000

         10  workers in this City.

         11                 I applaud Councilwoman Freed, Speaker

         12  Vallone, the other members of the Council, for their

         13  support of Intro. 693-A.

         14                 In 1911, Triangle Shirtways' factory

         15  fire brought to the forefront the issues around

         16  sweatshops, workers' rights, workers' safety,

         17  livable wages. It is sad that some 90 years later we

         18  actually have to legislate controls that will ensure

         19  things like this don't happen again.

         20                 I listened to Councilwoman Quinn's

         21  statements from the Mayor's reason of justifying

         22  this, to be opposed to this intro, and I have to

         23  ask, when is enough money, what savings, what is the

         24  cutoff of money that says now child labor, forced

         25  labor, hazardous working conditions are now okay?
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          2  What is that price? That question has to be asked

          3  and it has not been answered by the Mayor.

          4                 The firefighters, emergency medical

          5  technicians, police officers and paramedics of this

          6  City, those uniforms represent a belief and a

          7  commitment to the safety and well-being of others.

          8  Many brave men and women have given their lives for

          9  that commitment, and when that uniform represents

         10  that type of commitment and those types of

         11  sacrifices, to have anything that would denigrate or

         12  cast a shadow upon the embodiment of that commitment

         13  and those sacrifices is shameful, an insult to all

         14  of those brave men and women who gave their lives.

         15                 It is sad, like I said earlier, that

         16  in this day and age we have to legislate these

         17  changes. I don't know what the cutoff is for money,

         18  but I do applaud you all and we are grateful on

         19  behalf of all workers of this City that is finally

         20  being taken care of.

         21                 We thank you for it. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Mr. Ungar, anything?

         25                 MR. UNGAR: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          3                 Let me just add, by the way, that we

          4  did ask the Administration to testify today, and

          5  they turned us down. They did deliver a letter which

          6  we will make part of the record, and if you haven't

          7  got a copy of it, we will make sure you get it.

          8  Council Member Quinn referred to it.

          9                 And I have to agree particularly with

         10  what Mr. Bahnken just said, that it is the question

         11  of what kind of price are we talking about here. Not

         12  only is it do we approve child labor, do we approve

         13  slave labor, do we approve criminal labor? I think

         14  it is so important that this City just stands up and

         15  takes a moral position to say that we will do

         16  nothing to condone any of these positions, and the

         17  fact that we are looking at a fiscal impact of maybe

         18  2 million is peanuts when you look at the fact that

         19  we are looking at that is less than a cent from

         20  everyone, you know, that is a quarter of a cent for

         21  everyone who lives in the City and it is even less

         22  than that if you include everyone who works in the

         23  City. And it is kind of appalling that that is the

         24  kind of standard. The time that we have to quit

         25  looking at the most important bottom line in how you
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          2  measure something is in dollars and cents, and it is

          3  about time we started looking at the impact on the

          4  people and the quality of life of the residents of

          5  this City and certainly in this state, in this

          6  country, and I think this bill goes a long way to

          7  say that this City believes that people are more

          8  important than dollars and cents. And, quite

          9  frankly, I think it is very shortsighted, because

         10  they look at direct savings, but we don't look at

         11  the fact that many of the workers who will benefit

         12  from this live in the City of New York, and that

         13  will not only raise their standard of living, but

         14  they will go back to their communities, they will

         15  spend that money in their communities, which will

         16  create additional jobs and give additional benefits

         17  both in tax and other revenues to the City. So, I am

         18  offended by the shortsightedness of this.

         19                 So, gentlemen, I thank you very much.

         20  I want to thank you all for your leadership on this

         21  bill as well.

         22                 Are there any questions?

         23                 Council Member Perkins is here.

         24                 Great. Thank you very much.

         25                 I will give you the next panel, and
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          2  we are going to vote very, very soon.

          3                 David Rosenzweig, Pete Gorman and

          4  Teddy Lai.

          5                 Sit back down, you are already sworn

          6  in, and identify yourself. Teddy, just take a seat,

          7  we will get there.

          8                 MR. UNGAR: I am Robert Ungar, I am

          9  legislative counsel to the Fire Alarm Dispatchers

         10  Benevolent Association in the New York City Fire

         11  Department.

         12                 Just for the record, David

         13  Rosenzweig, the President of the Fire Dispatchers

         14  Union, as most of you know has been one of the labor

         15  people with a small union and a big labor mouth.

         16  David is a fighter for workers' rights, not just in

         17  his own union, but for unions across our City and

         18  our State and is an active member of the New York

         19  City Central Labor Council as well.

         20                 Just for the record, the Fire Alarm

         21  Dispatchers Benevolent Association which was

         22  recently voted uniformed status by the City Council

         23  the other day, is proud to become a member of the

         24  Uniformed Force of the Department, but would be a

         25  whole lot prouder if at the time when they get into

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  uniform, they get into uniforms that are made in

          3  safe working conditions and made by workers who are

          4  paid a living wage and have benefits.

          5                 The union is on record as opposing

          6  the City's purchase of uniforms that come in from

          7  overseas from companies that have shoddy labor

          8  practices and will continue to fight against that,

          9  to the point as to whether there will be a refusal

         10  to wear uniforms made by certain companies, we will

         11  see how that goes.

         12                 Knowing David, it will happen. So,

         13  anyway, we want to thank you very much, and on

         14  behalf of FABA we encourage you to vote yes on this

         15  introduction.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Lai, actually I have to swear you

         19  in, so if you would raise your right hand.

         20                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. LAI: Yes, I do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great.

         24                 State your name for the record and

         25  proceed.
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          2                 MR. LAI: My name is Teddy Lai, I am

          3  from the Greater Blouse, Skirt and Undergarment

          4  Association. And actually I was here before giving

          5  my testimony already, but the purpose I come back

          6  here again is I was very interested on seeing this

          7  bill being passed, and I am opposed on what Mayor

          8  Giuliani has done to this bill, and I am very upset

          9  about the currency division (sic) under the Mayor's

         10  Office.

         11                 Actually, my credentials, I have been

         12  in the garment industry for 35 years, and it so

         13  happened that I spent about 17 years in New York

         14  City and 17 overseas, so I have seen both sides, and

         15  how it has worked, and maybe perhaps by giving my

         16  true testimony I hope this bill will be passed for

         17  the benefit of our people here in New York City.

         18                 Dear Chairperson, members of the

         19  Council, it is my pleasure to speak in front of you

         20  again in the Uniform Bill. As we already know the

         21  New York garment industry has been forced to set

         22  back in many years. The number of garments produced

         23  in New York City also face steady declining in every

         24  year. Such decline was triggered by several reasons.

         25  Just to name a few:
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          2                 Significant of garment production has

          3  moved to import, due to lower cost and possible

          4  national trade agreement with other countries.

          5                 The images of contracting factories

          6  were always in the negative side.

          7                 Our local government, or even federal

          8  government lever has neglected this industry in many

          9  years and fail to support this industry.

         10                 There are much more reasons behind

         11  the decline of our industry. Of course, it will be a

         12  long process and perhaps it is an uphill battle for

         13  us all to turn the situation around. However, the

         14  voice of our industry has finally reached our local

         15  government. The New York City Council members have

         16  introduced a bill on producing a New York City

         17  uniform in New York City by passing this bill.

         18                 It means some of our contractors and

         19  manufacturers will survive.

         20                 It means the government money that

         21  our taxpayers pay will keep in our city.

         22                 It means a first step to set up a

         23  positive direction for other municipal government to

         24  follow.

         25                 But most important of all, by passing
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          2  this bill it will benefit tens and thousands of

          3  garment workers, they can keep their jobs, their

          4  living and their future within our New York City

          5  limits.

          6                 Before I came up here I heard a few

          7  Council members have certain questions about the

          8  living standard and the minimum wages in our country

          9  and related to the United States. So far I believe

         10  the United States is the third highest country in

         11  the world that is under minimum wages standards, to

         12  compare to Mexico, El Salvador or China or India,

         13  the living standard is much less than what we have

         14  here. And business structure over there is small,

         15  turns the profit dollar into the merchant's pocket

         16  or actually get into the pocket of workers, and I

         17  believe this is strongly what we are fighting for in

         18  here on this bill.

         19                 So, by putting the uniform back in

         20  the qualified shop in New York City, that means that

         21  we would create more jobs and more opportunity for

         22  the people, for the worker and for the company to

         23  survive here in New York City.

         24                 Plus, with my experience, most of the

         25  uniforms pay quite nicely than from the private
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          2  sector, because from retail to retail they have

          3  competition, they always are looking for the lowest

          4  possible price they pay. But, however, from the

          5  City, there is a certain regulation already

          6  governing the bottom line of what they are forced to

          7  pay by such amount of dollars put into uniforms,

          8  then you will have less chance for the contractor or

          9  manufacturer to be considered illegal or sweatshops.

         10                 And plus, from our Association, we

         11  are already in an initiative with the Department of

         12  Labor, with the UNITE, with the local State

         13  government, to set up a monitored factory, also

         14  working along with the manufacturer and retailer.

         15                 What it does is this: First we put

         16  the contractor into a six-week training course, and

         17  from there we will teach them how to operate the

         18  factory under the law, make sure all the safety

         19  standards, make sure the OSHA rules and the minimum

         20  wages have met, and after that we have a third-party

         21  monitoring company to go in to check on those

         22  factories and make sure that factory has followed

         23  the standard.

         24                 After the survey is done, then the

         25  Department of Labor or our organization will issue a
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          2  certificate to them to prove that this factory is no

          3  longer a sweatshop, they are working under the law.

          4                 This is the first step we are taking

          5  to try to eliminate the sweatshop, the name, in New

          6  York City. So, by having the uniform produced in our

          7  City surely will encourage the factory to move into

          8  the right directions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         10  very much. I want to thank you for your leadership,

         11  and the Greater Blouse, Skirt and Undergarment

         12  Association.

         13                 I just want to make it clear that you

         14  do represent garment manufacturers and you are

         15  before us today to tell us this is a good thing; is

         16  that correct?

         17                 MR. LAI: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And my

         19  understanding is that, as I see it, the

         20  manufacturers who have been paying a responsible

         21  wage have basically been undercut and have been very

         22  disadvantaged prior to this time by the position of

         23  the City where we just look to the bottom dollar; is

         24  that correct?

         25                 MR. LAI: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And you are

          3  telling us that you have no problem with meeting

          4  these conditions?

          5                 MR. LAI: I don't think so.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          7                 MR. LAI: At least none of my members

          8  will have that kind of problems.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. And no

         10  problem with the reporting or showing that you pay,

         11  you know, that your wage is a responsible wage and

         12  that the conditions are good, humane conditions and

         13  that you give benefits?

         14                 MR. LAI: Yes, of course.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Great. Okay.

         16                 MR. LAI: One more statement I would

         17  like to make. It just so happens that one of our

         18  members, he is doing uniforms already for the

         19  federal government military, and his shop was

         20  supervised by the federal department of the military

         21  service. After a year or so they don't need to send

         22  the quality control over to that factory anymore.

         23  So, it is a matter of cooperation and how to make

         24  the thing work, okay?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you so
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          2  much. We appreciate your testimony.

          3                 I know that we expected either Wang

          4  Mar or Sherman Ng to come today, they were going to

          5  try to testify also, but I guess they didn't make

          6  it.

          7                 Again, thank you. We are about to

          8  vote. I particularly want to thank UNITE, and we

          9  extend our thanks to both Edgar Romney, who is in

         10  the room, or was in the room. There he is, in the

         11  back. And Ed Vargus and Mae Chen. Thank you so much.

         12                 Okay, I think we are ready to vote.

         13                 Claude.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Freed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: If I may be

         16  excused to explain my vote? Just very quickly. I am

         17  very proud and honored to vote yes on this bill.

         18  This bill becomes one of a long series of bills that

         19  the Contracts Committee has been passing in the last

         20  several years, everything from prevailing wage to

         21  responsible gun manufacturing, and even the question

         22  of the Boy Scouts bill where we are trying to set a

         23  standard and send a message to others, other cities

         24  and states and municipalities and the country at

         25  large, to show that we take a moral position and ask

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  them to join us. So, again, I am thrilled to vote

          3  yes on this.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Espada.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I request

          9  permission to explain my vote, Madam Chair.

         10                 I need to speak on this bill like I

         11  have never spoken on any bill that I vote for,

         12  because this bill has an emotional attachment to it,

         13  and I am going to beg the Chairwoman to forgive me

         14  for one minute.

         15                 There is a man called Ernesto Hoffre

         16  (phonetic), who is right now in his home, he is ill

         17  and he is my friend. He is the manager of Local 169.

         18  This is one of the locals who deals with this issue.

         19  I was educated on this issue in 1996 and 1997 by

         20  him. He was the one who alerted me to the abuses of

         21  uniformed personnel of our City being used and being

         22  produced in sweatshops. And the dollars of this City

         23  were used to exploit workers. And it was this man,

         24  Ernesto Hoffre, who educated me on that. And for him

         25  I am going to vote on this bill today, and to him I
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          2  thank him for educating me.

          3                 I also want to say that when I got

          4  here elected and was sworn in in 1998, this woman,

          5  the Chairwoman of this body, of this Committee, had

          6  a meeting where she requested items for the agenda

          7  that we are going to attack in that period of time,

          8  and I brought to the agenda the issue of the

          9  sweatshop and the production of these uniforms being

         10  done in sweatshops. I explained to her the issue in

         11  detail. She embraced this issue and today we are

         12  going to see a result.

         13                 The only thing that I have to say,

         14  thank you, Madam Chair, for Ernesto, for all of the

         15  workers out there who have been exploited on this

         16  issue, for the personnel of the uniform, that are

         17  using these uniforms, knowing very well that these

         18  uniforms are not produced legitimately but due to

         19  abuse, you have done a great deal and a great favor

         20  to the workers of this country and outside of this

         21  country.

         22                 But I must say, I was not consulted,

         23  I was not invited to sign in this bill when this

         24  bill was ready to be submitted in this body, and I

         25  am very sad about that. I am in the bill, but I was
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          2  not told anything about it when it finally was done,

          3  and I just want to put that in the record.

          4                 To UNITE, I congratulate you for

          5  bringing this issue to the floor and for approving

          6  this bill today. I proudly vote yes on this bill,

          7  and I hope that we bring more like this in this

          8  Council of ours.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         11  much. And by the way, I am sorry to hear about

         12  Ernesto. Send him our regards and wish for a speedy

         13  recovery and our prayers. And thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: May I be

         19  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Of course.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         22                 I have some concerns about this bill,

         23  most of it I think is going to make a very, very

         24  important contribution to ensuring that workers are

         25  not exploited. I do have some concerns about the
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          2  protectionist aspects of the bill, and I also do

          3  have some concerns about the fiscal impact

          4  statement, not because it is not worth the price but

          5  because it appears as if we don't really know what

          6  the fiscal impact is because we don't have the

          7  information that would be necessary to determine

          8  that, and as a procedural matter, I just want to

          9  also register my concern about that. It sounds as if

         10  for whatever reason the Mayor's office did not

         11  provide the information so we are operating a little

         12  bit in a vacuum.

         13                 But I am going to vote in favor of

         14  this bill in deference to my colleagues here who I

         15  know have thought about some of these labor issues

         16  long and hard and also in deference to UNITE, who I

         17  know has worked very, very hard on this bill. So, I

         18  vote aye.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Next? Is that it?

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fiala.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         24  the affirmative, one in the negative, no

         25  abstentions, the item is adopted. Please sign the
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          2  report.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And my colleagues,

          4  I want to thank you for what you have done today. I

          5  think we have sent a really strong, powerful

          6  message, and really done a good deed in the fight

          7  for ending worker exploitation in this country and

          8  abroad. Thank you.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 12:53 p.m.)
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